POWDER BASIN MOTOCROSS INCORPORATED

BY-LAWS

2015

The purpose of this corporation is to provide a safe riding area for all members, to support and promote safe close coarse motocross racing and off road motor sports in general.

Article 1

This club shall be known as Powder Basin Motocross Inc. Hereafter known as PBMI.

Article 2

Active members shall be those who have current membership on file with PBMI. Any club business will be decided by the Board Members at a regular PBMI meeting; only active members shall be entitled to vote in club affairs.

Article 3

The officers of PBMI shall be President, Vice President, Secretary and Treasurer. These officers shall constitute the executive board.

Article 4

The duties of the President shall be: Preside/chair all meetings, have general supervision of PBMI affairs, appoint any person or committee not otherwise ordered by PBMI, personally represent PBMI on proper occasion, assist all officers/PBMI in their records/duties and vote only when necessary to break a tie.

Article 5

The duties of the Vice President shall be: Perform the duties of the President in his absence and to assist with duties of the President as needed.

Article 6

The duties of the Secretary shall be: Keep record of club meetings, send out notices of regular/special meetings and send/receive correspondence with members.

Article 7

The duties of the Treasurer shall be: Manage all monies, pay all bills, maintain a checking account and P.O. Box under the PBMI name, provide treasurer report at monthly meetings, complete and file all necessary paper work with Federal, State, County and City agencies.

Article 8

Annual election of officers will be held on the 2nd week of December each year. All terms shall be 2 years, with the President and Treasurer elected on even numbered years, Vice President and Secretary on odd numbered years. Number of terms is not limited.

Article 9

The regular monthly meeting shall be held on the second Tuesday of each month at 7:00 p.m..Monthly meeting time and location will be posted a minimum of one week prior to any regular meeting on the following web site (www.powderbasinmx.com). Any PBMI officer may call a special meeting at any time with advanced notice. Roberts Rule of Order shall guide the regular/emergency meetings of PBMI.

Article 10

50% of officers plus 1 member present at any monthly meeting shall constitute a quorum for transactions of PBMI business.

Article 11

Club membership dues will be by single or family memberships, with family membership consisting of immediate family members living in the same household only. Single memberships will receive one key; family memberships will receive two keys. Day passes may be purchased if the person is accompanied by an active member at all times while at the facility.

Article 12

PBMI board has the right to review and change the cost of memberships at the immediate beginning of any membership year. The membership year shall run from January 1 to December 31 of each year. The lock at the motocross complex will be changed in January of each year.

Article 13

These by-laws may be amended to, providing the proposed amendment is submitted in writing at a regular meeting. It shall be voted on at the following monthly meeting. A quorum plus one active member shall be required to pass an amendment.

Article 14

- 1. Only current PBMI members are allowed to participate in any motorized activity.
- 2. Four wheelers are allowed to ride on the designated 4-wheeler track only.
- 3. Three wheelers are prohibited.
- 4. Riding outside of PBMI complex boundary is prohibited.
- 5. Ride track in designated directions only.
- 6. Helmets and goggles are required at all times. Proper riding gear is strongly recommended.
- 7. Lock gate upon entering and upon leaving the complex.
- 8. PBMI may close the complex on days when riding may interfere with other Camplex facilities events.
- 9. Silencers are required on all motorcycle's and ATV's.
- 10. All motorcycle's and ATV's must be properly maintained.
- 11. Riding alone is strongly discouraged.
- 12. Minors(under 18) are required to be supervised by adult.
- 13. Ride/drive slowly when in parking area/ pit area.
- 14. Comply with all posted PBMI rules at the complex.
- 15. Riding/driving under the influence of drugs or alcohol is prohibited.
- 16. Allowing or assisting non-members to ride at the track is absolutely prohibited.
- 17. Loaning or any manner allowing his/her key to be utilized by any person that is not a current member is prohibited.
- 18. Last 20 minutes of every hour will be designated for 65cc and smaller bikes.

Any member in violation of these or any other posted rules may result in membership being suspended or revoked at the discretion of PBMI officers. At its sole discretion, PBMI reserves the right to have anyone removed from the premises who violates any PBMI complex rule including; rules in membership paperwork, posted rules at complex and event rules. Any person that commits an unsafe act toward any fellow members or spectator may be removed from the complex.